
Law Enforcement Ad-Hoc Committee Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2022 

Council Members Present: Mike Caughey and Kim Downey 
Citizen Members:  Don Messick 
Members Absent:  Chairperson Mayor Robert Duncan, Councilor Charlotte Thomas 

  and Citizen Travis Crosman        
Staff Present: City Administrator, Michele Eldridge and City Recorder, Lori Ross 
Law Enforcement Present: Sheriff Duncan, Chief Larson, and Undersheriff Smith 
Meeting Location: Harrisburg Municipal Center Located at 354 Smith St 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL by Caughey, sitting in for Chairperson, Mayor Robert Duncan 
at the hour of 6:30pm. 

CONCERNED CITIZEN(S) IN THE AUDIENCE. All present were there for items on the agenda. 

MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FOR THE DECEMBER 2, 2021 LAW ENFORCEMENT 
AD-HOC COMMITTEE MEETING 

• Downey motioned to approve the minutes for the December 2, 2021 Law
Enforcement Ad-Hoc Committee meeting and was seconded by Messick.
The Ad-Hoc Committee then voted unanimously to approve the minutes
for December 2, 2021.

THE MATTER OF THE CONTINUANCE OF A DISCUSSION IN RELATION TO LAW 
ENFORCEMENT OPTIONS FOR THE CITY OF HARRISBURG  
STAFF REPORT:   Eldridge read a statement from Chairperson, Mayor Robert Duncan who was 
not able to attend (Addendum 1).  She stated that this would most likely be our last meeting.  We 
have learned how much it would cost to have a police department and we were able to learn more 
about our current law enforcement contracts.  The committee learned that a police department 
would be cost prohibitive and would require additional funding from the City and tax revenue.   

• Eldridge stated that during the last meeting, the committee decided to send out a
survey to the residents. She then reviewed the results from the 75 surveys received
as shown in Addendum 2. Written comments were discussed as shown in
Addendum 3.
• Eldridge reviewed the 4th quarter crime comparison as shown on page 17 and the

crime statistics shown on page 18. She stated that between 2018 and 2021 there

UNAPPROVED



Harrisburg Law Enforcement Ad-Hoc Committee Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2022 

2 
 

was only a difference of about five crimes.  In 2018 there were 190, in 2020 there 
were 185 and in 2021 there was 187.  Property crimes increased and drug and 
alcohol, traffic and the “other” crimes were about the same.  In person crimes were 
cut in half, and when compared to other contracted counties, we have a lower 
crime level. There was an increase in property crimes that occurred in the fourth 
quarter due to “porch pirates” during the holidays.     

• Eldridge reminded the committee that it was assembled to provide direction to 
Council in how the City would budget for law enforcement services.  Over the 
years, the City has been steadily dropping hours for law enforcement services. 
After reviewing the response of the citizens, she asked if we feel that we need more 
services added back into the schedule or leave it as is.  If we add more hours, we 
are making an adjustment from somewhere else in the budget.  City Council will 
take any committee recommendations into advisement, but it will be City Council 
who decide if and what kind of changes are to be made.   

• Downey commented that citizens feel crimes are getting worse and she thinks if the  
City would have quarterly crime prevention seminars, in which LCSO would attend, it 
would help residents be advised of what they need to do to prevent these crimes from 
happening. Downey also commented that when the previous substation was here, it 
was staffed by  S.A.L.T Volunteers so it appeared that there was always someone at 
the station.  She was also concerned that some residents don’t know we have a 
substation and thought we could communicate more about it and have more signage. 
Ross commented that there use to be a sign out front at the old City Hall, were 
residents could see it from the road.  At the new City Hall, unless you pull into the 
parking lot, you can’t see the sign on the Substation door.  

• Sheriff Duncan commented that a lot of the volunteers LCSO has are elderly and most 
have chosen not to work during the pandemic.  She stated that Michael Mattingly, with 
Neighborhood Watch, sent out a Facebook post asking about restarting or if there was 
any interest in Neighborhood Watch and received no responses.  She stated the next 
step would be to have a Neighborhood Watch Council, where area programs get 
together and speak about it in a county forum.  She stated that in the past, we would 
have a local representative attend those meetings.  

• Downey thinks crime forum meetings are very important and when we had them 
before, we didn’t have complaints, and now we do.  Sheriff Duncan responded that 
she would have Michael Mattingly reach out to Councilor Downey.  

• Undersheriff Smith commented that it has been discussed with City Staff, that LCSO 
may not have been providing the City with the information they needed for the 
community and the City didn’t have a dedicated place to provide it.  He suggested 
letting the residents get to know the deputies that are assigned to Harrisburg, by 
mentioning them on Facebook or the City Newsletter. Downey thought it was a great 
idea and suggested they could appear at the quarterly forums so people could meet 
them.   

• Undersheriff Smith also stated that LCSO is here at night, and to show that, they could 
breakdown the statistics in the crime reports to reflect hourly activity.   

• Caughey commented that we have had problems with effective communication.  The 
City has Facebook, a webpage, and utility bills and unfortunately people don’t turn 
over the bill to read it.  Sheriff Duncan replied that the best communication is face to 
face and the more engagements the City has, will get the community involved and 
give them the opportunity to ask questions.   

• Caughey commented that he likes to see reports that show the interaction between 
deputies and the community, especially the children.   Sheriff Duncan commented that 

UNAPPROVED



Harrisburg Law Enforcement Ad-Hoc Committee Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2022 

3 
 

LCSO has always had that but never reported it in the past until recently when they 
saw the positive reactions. She also said they weren’t indicating the extra patrols until 
recently.   

• Eldridge stated that all LCSO reports are available online and the statistic reports will 
be soon. There are some events this year, with local business, that she would like to 
have officers present at.  One of the goals for the Strategic Plan, is making more 
information available for the residents and to try to get more people involved.   

• Resident Bob Bronson, of Sommerville Lp and Board Chairman of Directors for 
Harrisburg Fire Department, commented that HFRD has had a long relationship with 
LCSO as they assist with calls.  One thing he thinks can help with crime, is motion 
sensor lights.  He has never had anything taken except for once when he forgot to 
lock his car.  He also commented that when driving through Harrisburg, there is no 
direction as to where City Hall or the Substation are located, and that people need to 
be reminded we are here. He suggested mentioning video cameras in the newsletters 
as they are effective and suggested having a lucky number on the page of the utility 
bill to get people to read it.   

• Undersheriff Smith stated that providing crime prevention tips is part of the quarterly 
meetings. He liked the lucky number address idea and suggested to have a prize of a 
LED motion light and joked about having Sergeant Frambes deliver it.   

• Bob Bronson stated that yard lights just say that you are home, they don’t do anything 
to scare people away.  The motion lights will alert and make them go somewhere else.    

• Caughey commented that on the survey, it was mentioned that nobody is patrolling at 
night, when most thefts happen, and he knows that both LCSO and Coburg are 
patrolling at night. He stated if you have something of value, don’t leave it out or leave 
it unlocked. All citizens need to do their part not to make things look so attractive.     

• Downey stated that as a City Council member, she is here to represent the citizens 
and she thinks LCSO, and Coburg are doing a great job.   

• Messick stated that there are always people who think we should have our own police 
department and if we did, we would still not have people happy with the department.  
Residents will always have a sense that we can do more, especially when someone’s 
been victimized.  The question is, do we add hours and what would that look like. If we 
do, where would that money come from and how many hours?  If we were to add 
hours, would LCSO be able to fill those hours with their staff shortages. Looking at the 
numbers from 2018-2021, it doesn’t appear that we need more law enforcement as 
that slight increase of five crimes, could happen in one night.  Messick also stated that 
this was one of the first communities to have Neighborhood Watch as he was 
involved, and people need to understand that it is something that a community does, 
not necessarily law enforcement. The City could help form their own. It doesn’t have to 
be people driving around the neighborhood anymore as Neighborhood Watch now is 
about phone trees, connecting neighbors with neighbors and getting the community to 
know each other.  These are steps the City could take and he thought LCSO would be 
happy to give guidance if needed.   

• Downey stated that she doesn’t want to add hours unless it’s going to be productive. 
Messick replied that he doesn’t want to add hours if there is not a need and if there is 
going to struggle to meet those hours.   

• Downey also stated that with her camera she is also alerted as to what is going on 
across the street.  She feels this is the type of thing that she wants to talk about as a 
community as to how we can help each other from becoming a victim. Messick stated 
this is how Neighborhood Watch has provided that strength over the years.  It’s 

UNAPPROVED



Harrisburg Law Enforcement Ad-Hoc Committee Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2022 

4 
 

neighbors knowing neighbors. Downey asked Chief Larson if Coburg PD had 
Neighborhood Watch and he replied they did not.   

• Bart Griffith, of Red Clover Ct and the Harrisburg Fire Department Chief, commented 
that as a resident he doesn’t want to see the City go backwards and to keep the level 
that we have or increase if it’s sustainable.  As a professional, he feels things have 
improved three Sheriffs later, and he wants to see that relationship to continue with 
LCSO.  He would also like to have Coburg PD stop into the Fire Department so they 
can get to know each other.   

• Eldridge stated that we are looking for a recommendation to the City Council.  She will 
be providing Council with the latest results from the survey as well as what is in the 
agenda tonight.  We can make a recommendation to not make any changes, or we 
can make recommendation to add more hours if it’s affordable to the budget.  Downey 
stated that if adding more hours, keeps our community safer than she would but she 
doesn’t feel that has been established at this meeting.  She feels that’s the question 
that should be taken to Council. 

• Downey asked Sheriff Duncan if adding hours would mean having deputies here more 
and she replied yes, however, LCSO is currently almost nine deputies down on the 
patrol side. She would need to know what those hours looked like and what their 
projected staffing looks like as well.  She thought having it as a topic at the time of 
contract negotiations this year would be best as she will have a better idea what their 
staffing situation is. She doesn’t want to make any false promises if they are not able 
to provide more services.    

• Downey asked Chief Larson about Coburg PD staffing and Chief Larson answered if it 
was a slight increase, it would be easier, but more would require hiring more 
personnel and training.  

• Eldridge said she wanted to thank everyone for being a part of this committee and 
how much she appreciated them.  It’s been very constructive, and she feels she has 
good information to take to Council.   

• Sheriff Duncan thanked Eldridge for all the information.   
• Downey commented that this is a topic that comes up over and over and she now 

feels, after looking at the data, that as a City Councilor, she can talk to the community 
about it.  

• Caughey stated that we have learned a lot at these meetings and especially the 
information we received from LCSO. He thanked everyone for participating.       

 

ADJOURN at the hour of 7:30pm 

 

____________________     ___________________ 
Chairperson       City Recorder 

 

UNAPPROVED



Addendum 1



Addendum 2



Addendum3














